
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

 
 
Date: September 21, 2017 
 
To:  Interested Proposers 
 
From:   Diane M. Murzynski, CPPO, CPPB, Purchasing Coordinator 
 
RE:  Enterprise Resource Planning Software Request for Proposals (RFP) 

 
 

This Addendum modifies the above RFP documents only to the extent indicated herein.  
All other areas not changed or otherwise modified by this Addendum shall remain in full 
force and effect.  This Addendum is hereby made an integral part of the original Project 
Documents. 
 
The Proposer shall sign below acknowledging they have read and understand 
that this Addendum includes and incorporates the following changes or 
attachments.  
 
 
1. “Is the City of Albany considering Learning Management or Performance 
Management Systems as part of the fully integrated ERP system?” 
 
Answer: The City would welcome the inclusion of those modules in the response, but 
please separate them in the cost proposal so that clear distinction can be made 
between modules. 
 
 
2. “Will you consider an ERP which does not include HR/Payroll but rather utilizes 
integration to leverage best-of-breed capabilities?” 
 
Answer:  Yes. The vendor must provide details on the module vendor, including 
technical details of the integration itself and separate costs/fees. 
 
 
3. “How many total employees will access the ERP in one form or another for purposes 
other than time recording or HR/HCM functions?” 
 
Answer: 120. 
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4. “How many employees will require the ability to add A/P or A/R documents or make 
Journal Entries? This includes anyone who creates a Work Order or creates a Purchase 
order. This also includes anyone who would create a Supplier record and manage 
Vendor RFP/RFQ processes and vendor contracts. This level would include the ability 
access read-only reports, record time, submit expense reports, and create procurement 
requests - if given permissions.” 
 
Answer:  
JE’s - 3 
AP - 4 
AR - 1 
 
 
5. “How many employees will only require access to the ERP to create and manage 
projects? This includes the ability access read-only reports, record time, submit 
expense reports, and create procurement requests - if given permissions?” 
 
Answer:  Our Project Accounting group is 11. 
 
 
6. “How many of your employees will only have use for Time Recording and HR/HCM 
functions like requesting vacation time and making changes to personal data and 
withholdings?” 
 
Answer:  Approximately 300. 
 
 
7. “How many employees will only require access to the ERP to record the movement 
of goods? For example, the receipt of goods, the shipment of goods, inventory counts 
and the issuance of materials to cost projects.  This includes the ability access read-
only reports, record time, submit expense reports, and create procurement requests - if 
given permissions.” 
 
Answer:  Approximately 300. 
 
 
8. “How many employees will only require access to the ERP for read-only reports and 
or to submit self-service procurement requests?”  
 
Answer: Approximately 30 have view only access to Project Accounting, Contract 
Management, and Bid & Quote modules. 
 
 
9. “How many employees will only require access to the ERP for read-only reports, 
submitting expense reports and recording time on projects and or work orders?” 
 
Answer:  See above for Project Accounting. 
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10. “How many employees will require Super-user or Admin level access?” 
 
Answer: 5 (4 in IT, 1 in Finance). 
 
 
11. “How many users will also be responsible for defining and managing inventory and 
storage locations, or managing the overall flow of materials into an out of a 
warehouse?” 
 
Answer: TBD. We don’t currently use an inventory system. 
 
 
12. “Approximately how many: 
 
a. Sales Order lines per month are generated in your current system? 
 
 Answer: No information available; City does not currently track this data. 
 
b. Outbound Goods Movement lines per month are generated in your current system?  
 
 Answer: No information available; City does not currently track this data. 
 
c. Manual Journal Entry Lines per month are generated in your current system? 
 
 Answer:  No information available; City does not currently track this data. 
 
d. Customers/Citizen Records do you have in your current system? 
 
 Answer:  4,066 active vendors; 515 active AR Accounts. 
 
e. Fixed Assets are tracked in your current system?  
 
 Answer:  We don’t currently use a fixed assed module. 
 
 
13. “How many Billable or Invoice-able items are tracked in your current system (Items 
Numbers or Services Item Numbers)?” 
 
Answer:  No information available; City does not currently track this data. 
 
14. “What is the Maximum number of Lines per: 
 
a. Sales Order Document? 
b. Customer Invoice Document? 
c. Purchasing Document 
d. Bank Statement 
e. Goods Receipt Document 
f. Outbound Delivery Documents 
g. Open Projects 
h. Tasks per Project 
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i. Tracked organizational units in a department 
j. Time Confirmations per Purchase Order (how many times will a vendor submit time 
on a PO?) 
 
Answer:  No information is available; City does not currently track this data for any of 
the above requested categories. 
 
 
15. “How many departments will use this system?” 

 
Answer:  Ten and an Urban Renewal. 
 
 
16. “How many locations will require training?” 
 
Answer:  All departments will require training. The training will be held at a central 
location. 
 
 
17. “How many locations will have their own super-users?” 
 
Answer:  2 (IT & Finance). 
 
 
18. “How many sets of books will you maintain?” 
 
Answer: One set of chart of accounts. 
 
 
19. “How many individual cost centers do you track?” 
 
Answer: 136. 
 
 
20. “How many individual profit centers do you track?” 
 
Answer: We currently don’t use profit centers. 
 
 
21. “Can the City provide how much has been budgeted for this project or a range for 
the budget for this project?” 
 
Answer: The City’s requirements, including number of personnel and required modules, 
were provided in the RFP. The vendor’s quote should be based upon the data provided. 
 
 
22. “Will there be any pre-bid conference call or webex for this RFP?” 
 
Answer: There will NOT be a pre-bid conference call or webex. 
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23. “Will the City offer a 2 week extension for the due date as well?” 
 
Answer:  Due to time constraints, the due date cannot be extended. 
 
 
24. “Can companies from Outside USA apply for this? (like, from India or Canada) 
Whether we need to come over there for meetings? Can we perform the tasks (related 
to RFP) outside USA? (like, from India or Canada) Can we submit the proposals via 
email?” 
 
Answer: Since the project is funded by U.S. tax dollars, the City will be targeting our 
software search within the U.S. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
Proposer’s Signature  Date 
   

Company Name (Please print)   
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